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DIRECTOR’S DESK

By Randy F. Nimnicht

Our research library has ac-
yuired equipment lor copying
and caring for photographs in
accordance with professional-
Iy accepted standards. thus
using the remainder ofa grant
[rom Junior League of
Miami, Incorporated.
HASF's photographic collec-
tion s @ very important
historical resource, since
photographs  often  provide
the researcher with otherwise
unavailable information
about such mundane topics as
housing, clothing, and
Lransportation.

The new darkroom has a
special copying camera for
reproducing photographs,
often improving upon the
originals. This is done with

special  lenses, hilters, and
technigues. HASF en-
courages individuals  with

historically signiflicant
photographs to allow us to
copy them. We can make
copics immediately, thus
allowing the owner to take his
precious piclures with him
without waiting. A copy in the
HASF library assures safe
keeping for the photograph.

Fully as important as good
equipment is a good storage

system, insuring efficient
retrieval of the photograph
from our [les. Researchers
can use our cross-referenced
subject index 1o look for
photos which may provide in-
formation on a given Wopic.
We use a system based upon
that at the Florida
Photographic  Archives  in
Tallahassee. Our librarnan,
Rebecca Smith. recently un-
derwent a week of specialized
training in  Tallahassee,
augmenting that which she
received in graduate school.
HASF owes a debt of
gratitude to Joan Morris,
Archives curator, for all her
Assistance.

Please consider whether
vou have photographs that
HASF should add to its grow-
ing collection.

HASF
OFFICERS

NEW OFFICERS

We welcome new officers
as lollows: President. George
B. Hardie. Jr.; First Vice
President, Jack G. Admire:
Second Vice President. Finlay
B. Matheson; Recording
Secrelary, Mrs. James S.
Woolten: Corresponding
Secretary. Mrs. Robert L.
Parks: Treasurer. Walter
., Hill.

FROM THE EDITORS

Weve recefved many ar-
ticles from vow, owr loval
readers aned  writers, all of
wihich will eventually be used,
However, we hove g con-
rineeing need for shorr articles
ar capsile comments, from 25
1o 300 words. These are in-
valwahle not only for their
Ristoric coneributions bur also
ax filfers, 1o make the columns
come out even. Keep them
OO,

Ty sed the record straight,
please note the following
the April issue: Page 3, below
the Capitel phorto, the daie
showld he 1945, Page 7, top of
Codumn 1, the drawing is by
Carl Fisher. Page 2, the cover
phote is related 1o a motor-
cale cefehration, not really an
apenting: and on page 7, mid-
e column, the reference
showld be 1o Indianapolis. not
Minneapalis.  (Your editor
thought for vears that these
Iwer  cities were the same
place!)

We have selected a theme
for the February 1976 issue,
“Early Tourism in South
Florida™. Also under con-
sicleration is a fumba double-
sized hicentennial issue for
June 1976, If any of vou have
ideas or suggestions for
articles bearing on these
iwe topics, please take two
steps forward.
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THE PORT OF MIAMI.. .. s vsco e

Miami had a seaport some
eighty vears ago, at the very
beginning of its history, but it
wis a small and minor
satellite port to the booming
port it Key West. Waterborne
travel and commeree were
then carried on by small sail-
ing vessels. plying between
Miami and Key West, where
steamer conneclions  were
available to New York and the
Large citics in the north.

In 1896, when the mailroad
was [(inally extended 1o
Miam, the milroad company
constructed wharves and im-
proved the existing channel
around Cape Flonida to a
twelve-foot depth. At this
time, regular slcamer service
was commeénced between
Miamiand outports including
kev West, the Bahamas and
Havana.

Then in 1912 the Federal
Government came into the
picture with material help for
the Medgling port by com-
mencement of the Miami
Harbor development. This
resulted in the creation of the
first Federal channel -
Government cut - between
what i1s now South Miami
Beach and Fisher Island and
extending from the ocean
across Biscayne Bay to the
shoreline of Miami in the
downtown area.

Wiaterborne commerce
Mourished durning the boom
vears. and many a lumber
carrier wus anchored out in
Biscavne Bay waiting to un-

(e author completed 37
vearys of service m the United
Starex Coast Guard in 1966,
refiring as rear admiral. He
then became Pore Director for
the Port of Miami, remaining

in that position untif
Decenther 1972, Hé waox
Presideni of HASF for
1974-75,

load s precious cargo ol con-
struction malenal so that
building ashore could go
forward at a very rapwd pace.

Then came the “bust™ and
the depression. Cargo ton-
nage (o the Port of Man [ell
to less than half of what it had

heen during the boom vears.
But as the South Flornida arca
hegan 1o rebound from the

Center. A great number of
Navy and Coast Guard of-
lcers who were to form the of -
ficer complement on
destroyer escorts, patrol craft,
amphibious-force ships and
the like received their basic
shoreside training at this porl
site and. indeed. the old Port
of Miamai facilities can receive
at least small distinction for

l.umber schooners docked at the foot of Flagler Street in 1925.

{ Phate frion  the
Lihrary. )

Romver Collectiom,

Migmii- Dade  Puhfic

Steamship docks and turning basin as seen from the Everglades
Hotel roof in 1926.

{Photo from the Romer Cofleciion, Miami- Dade  Public
{ibrary.)
doldrums. once again waler- When the war came,

home commerce picked up.
However, this new growth
did not continue too long.
World War Il saw the port
facilities on Biscayne
Boulevard taken over by the
Mavy for use as the Sub-
marine Training
helping the war effort.

Chaser

coastwise waterborne com-
merce in its normal sense vir-
tually disappeared, and the
coastwise routes became the
sealanes for carrving the tools
and resources of our war ef-
{ort. The entire east and gulf
coasts of the United States
were ““happy hunting

grounds™ for enemy sub-
marines, and many a valiant
seaman and many essential
cargoes were lost, Strangely
enough. as the coastwise trade
wits fast disappearing during
the war vears, the great future
potential of our port area for
[oreign commerce was com-
ing into focus.

Thus in 1946, when the old
port properties wereé handed
back to the City of Miami
from the Navy. those with
foresight in our community
recognized that our port did
have a great potential. and
planning for expansion com-
menced. 1t was soon obvious
that the 26-acre port site on
Biscavne Boulevard was
hemmed in by private
development. with no room
[or the port to grow. Adecade
ol planning yielded about a
dozen different proposals for
replacing the old port which
by now was suffering the
pangs of deteriorating bulk-
heads, rusting cargo sheds,
inadequate room and just
plain obsolescence.

Included in these plans
were proposals to expand the
port to the northward by fill-
ing in the western shore of
Biscayne Bay: by relocation to
Watson Island. or to South
Miami Beach. or 1o Virginia
Key, or to a brand-new site in
the Bay.

It was, of course, this last
proposal that was finally
adopted t1ocreate anentirely
new port in the middle of
Biscayne Bay, just south of
the Government Cut channel.
The site chosen was, in fact, a
series of four spoil islands that
had been developed during
the dredging of Miami's
lifeline to the sea, its main har-
bor channel. This so-called
Dodge Island site was 1o be
the ultra-modern New Port
of Miami

Continuwed on page 12
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THE BISCAYNE HOUSE OF REFUGE

By Thelma Peters

One hundred years ago
there was no more desolate *
beach on the Atlantic
scaboard than Lower
Florida's. That fact was
dramatized in 1873 when a
ship was wrecked. midway
between Norris Cut and New
River. The crew managed to
get ashore only to find them-
selves stranded and unable
fo reach any human habita-
tion. Eventually their plight
was discovered by a beach-
comber and they were res-
cued, but the story in New
York newspapers stirred the
United States Life Saving

Service to action. They
authorized, in 1876, the
building of five identical

houses of refuge spaced along
the lower cast coast of Florida
at intervals of about twenty
miles. The most southern of
these, Number 5, was called
Biscayne House of Refuge
and was located on the beach
in the area known today as
Surfside.

The houses were con-
structed of wood and had
shingle roofs. The first [loor,
surrounded by a wide
overhang making a porch,
had three main rooms and a
kitchen, the latter made by
enclosing the north side of the
porch. This floor was living
guarters for the keeper and his
family. The second floor was a
one-room loft large enough
for twenty cots and was in-
tended for stranded sealarers.
Each house had a brick cistern
for storing rainwater. Equip-
ment for each keeper included
binoculars, a medicine chest,
tools and paints and brushes
for making repairs, extra food
rations and a log book. Each
house had a 22-foot sur{ boat

Dr. Peters has just returned
from a Hun‘:i}ﬂg wrcal fon

the Canary Islands.

and a boathouse to keep it in.
The cost of each installation
was about $3,000.

Each house was manned by
one keeper - usually with a
family to help him. He was

the beach to look for wrecks
and survivors. The Biscayne
keeper's beatl went south as far
as Norris Cut and north
halfway to Number 4, FL
Lauderdale House of Refuge.

i A . - : T i h : i : .. r 'I_-:' . . :'1.. -
The first NMoor of the Biscayne House of Refuge was living

quarters for the keeper and his family. The second floor loft was

for hosse stranded sealarers.

fPhora from the HASF Collection. )

This photo of a picnic-on-the-porch was made by early Miami
photographer, P.J. Coates in 1898, reputedly taken al the
Biscayne House of Refluge. Porch columns and railings do not
coincide with those of known photos of the House of Refuge. Bui
it is a great picnic party, and this is exactly what did happen at the
House of Refuge almost any Sunday afternoon.
fDonor  of photograph, Miss Nelle  Coares.
frheriographer. )

nol expected to attempt to In his daily log the keeper

niece  of

rescue a ship breaking up in a
storm: he was not equipped
for that. His role was to gather
up survivors and make them
as comfortable as possible.
Following all storms the
keeper was required to patrol

recorded weather and the
number and type of ships
which passed. Almost all the
ships were southbound,
avoiding the north flow of the
Gulfstream by staying
between 1t and shore.

Northbound ships rode the
Stream and were too far from
shore to be observed. The
volume of shipping recorded
in the early 1880= was six to
eight ships daily. Some ol the
regular steamers were
recognized and recorded by
name and represented such
lines as Morgan, Ward and
Clvde.

The keeper was also asked
to respond each day to the
question, “Is the station
clean”™ The routine answer
was ves. On May 24, 1890, the
keeper. John Thomas
Peacock. replied, *Muddling.”
He explained that sacks of
flour had been washing
ashore from a wreck and peo-
ple were gathering them up
and putting them on the sta-
tion porch and managing to
track flour all over the place.
{ The seawater and flour form-
ed a hard outer shell around
cach sack; the contents were
usually dry and usable,
although requiring an ax for
Opening. )

A keeper was paid 5400 a
vear plus supplies. It was a
lonely life but not without ex-
citement.

The best account we have of
life in a house of refuge was
written by Charles W. Pierce
{ Pioneer Life in Southeast
Flortda, University of Miami
Press, 1970), whose f[ather,
Hannibal D, Pierce, was the
first keeper of Number 3,
Orange Grove House of
Refuge, and later the third
keeper of Biscayne. Charles’
sister, Lillie Pierce Voss, was
born at Orange Grove and her
son, Dr. Gilbert Voss, of the
University of Miami, has also
written an account of the
Pierce family experiences,
{ Tequesta, 1968},

In 1890 Captain William
Hawkins Fulford was ap-
pointed keeper of Biscayne, a
position he held for at least a
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The Riscayne House of Refuge was built in the area known today as Surfside. The keeper was
responsible for patrolling the coast from Norris Cut north halfway to Fi. Lauderdale after storms.
This photo was taken in 1918, Eight years later the refuge was destroyed in a hurricane and was not”

rebuilt,

{ M frimn the HASE Colleerion,)

decade. Fulford was of Baha-
mian descent and had lived at
New Smyrna before moving
1o Station 5. He and his wife
attended church. shopped and
socialized in Lemon Cily, a
community almost opposile
the bayside boat landing
across the beach from the
House of Reluge, The
Fulfords were very hospitable
and received many visitors at
the station, not only their
friends from Lemon City but
from all the bay communities,

Some came by the way of
the famous Crocodile Hole, a
creek near the north end of In-
dian Creek. the opening to it
almost concealed by
overhanging mangroves bul
offering a chance to tie up a
boat within a short walk of the
beach. The beach opposite
Crocodile Hole was popular
for swimming and picnicking
and a day's outing there usual-
ly incloded a walk up the
beach to the House of Refuge.

Whether he was supposed
to or not Fulford ran his sta-
tion as a guest house for
friends as well as for paying
guests. Some of these were
winter visitors, others local
people who came to watch the
turtles erawl out 1o nest in the
late spring - always an ex-

citing life cyvele to watch as
well ax a chance to geta good
supply ol epes lor cating.

The Miany Meiropolis Tor
Jamuary 21, 1K9K. reported:
“Captain W. H. Fulford of the
House ol Reluge has had to
relfuse o nuomber of
applications lor board as his
howse 1s full, The jolly captain
and his wife make things so
pleasant for their guesis they
always refurn,”

Every few monihs an in-
spector from the Life Saving
Service would check on the
physical condition of the sta-
tion and the efficiency of the
keeper. In 1892 the inspector
was Captin H. E. Shaw and
he chose to walk along the
beach from house to house in
making his inspections,
though usually a boat was
provided for the mspector.
The Tropical Sun, September
2, 1892, quoted him as saying
that *to make this trip a howl-
ing success in pedestrianism
one leg should be longer than
the ‘other and reversible.™

I'he logs of the station are
preserved in  the National
Archives. Here are a few sam-
ple entrics made by Keeper
Fulford:

April 21, 1891
“Mail carrier got to station

in nearly exhausted condi-
tron, Put him to bed and
made him comfortable.”

July 25, 189]
“Steam vacht “Julia™, Capt.
Pratt, came in to anchor in
3 fathoms and reported out
of fuel. We procured some
assistance from the main-
land anmd went 1o work siaw-
ing up pine imber with
which the shore abounds
and got four cords of
wood,”

September 25, 1894
“Ternfic gales. Solid
hreakers within ten feet of
sleps.”
{Following this threat of
having the house washed
away the building was mov-
ed 4 hundred feet to the
west and set on new foun-
dations. Mules and men
were brought from Lemon
City for this work.)

October 3, 1894
“Wile helping repair sails.”
(Wives and children gave
valuable ad but were rarely
mentoned. )

December 26, 1895
“Killed a rattlesnake 6 1.2
. long in the path between
the house and the landing.”
When Captain  Fulford

retired from his keeper’s job

he moved to the homestead he

had begun to develop during
vacations. 1t was located near
today’s Northeast 163rd
Street and Route | and
»ecame the nucleus for a small
arm community known as
Fulford until it was changed
o North Miami Beach in
1931.

Eventually the House of
Reluge was accessible by a
narrow rock road from the
south, a favorite jaunt for
Sundav drivers after they had
crossed the bay on Collins
Bridge. The statwn had
declined n 1mportance as a
refuge for castaways but wis
i pood plice o get help for
a sting by a Portugese man-
O =W,

The was  totally
destroved in the 1926
hurricane. By this time the
Coast Guard had taken over
the Life Saving Service and
the Coast Guard was
operating out of Base 51X in
Fi. Lauderdale, ntent on
ending rum and alien smug-

SN

ghng. The Biscayne House of
Refuge was not rebuilt,

One of the five houses of
refuge on the lower coast
{ there were another Dive father
up the coast) has been
presc rved a5 a4 muscum:
“umber 2. Gilbert’s Bar,
located on the beach near
Stuart. It is well worth a visit
for anvone who would learn
more about this nteresting
phase of South Florida
miritime history.

MARKING TIME

On Sunday. March 7, 1954,

the Historical Association af

Southern Florida under
President Adam G. Adams
unveiled a historical marker
on the ocean at 7T2nd Street
and Collins Avenue, to com-

memorate the site of the

Biscayne House ol Refuge.
An address was given by Cap-
tain 5. P. Swicegood., Com-
mander of the 7th Coast
Guard District, the Miami
Beach High School Band pro-
vided music, and there was
an exhibit of Coast Guard
life-saving equipment,

BISCAYNE HOUSE OF REF
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THE UNITED STATES NAVAL
STATION AT KEY WEST

Ev John R. Hope

lhe year was [822 and
James Monroe was President
of the United States. The
Napoleonic wars and the war
of 1812 were recent history,
and the dreaded Corsican just
a vear earlier had breathed his
last in exile on 5t. Helena.
Spain. long preoccupied n
Europe. was striving
desperately 1o reestablish
sovereignty over her rebel-
lious Central and South Ame-
ncan colonies. In this effort
Spain had the backing of the
major European powers.
For the first time, the young
United States began o look
southward and anxiously 1o
comtemplate the uncertain-
ties of a potentially explosive
situation. A vear later the
President was to proclaim the
Maonroe Doctrine, but as ear-
lv as 1822 moves were under
way o increase United
States naval strength in the
waters (o the south.

It followed guite naturally
that Key West with s deep
channels and protected
anchorages provided a
strategic location at which to
hase naval operations. And so
it was that Li. Matthew C.
Perry. skipper ol the schoon-
er “Shark™, was ordered by
the Secretary of the Navy,
Smith Thompson, on Februy-
ary 7, 1822, to take posses-
sion of the island in the
name of the United States.

Actually, the island of Key
West already belonged to the
United States in 1822 since it
was nommally a part of

Chir author, a history buff
and a Phi Bera Kappa from
the University of HNlinois, is a
hurricane specialist ar
MNavional Hurricane Center,
Coral Gahles. This is his sec-
ond appearance in Update.

Florida. and President
Monroe had proclaimed the
Adams-Onis  treaty with
Spamn. ceding Flonda 1o the
United States, on February
22, 1821, However, Key West
was virtually unoccupied at
the time except that it was
frequently used as a haven
by pirates who preyed on
Gulf of Mexico and Carib-
bean shipping. The first naval
operations carried out there
were directed against these
pirates.

The private owner of the
land in Key West in 1822 was
one John W. Simonton, an
American who had purchased
it from its Spanish owner for
two thousand dollars.

A year later the first Key
West naval station had come
into being with Commodaore
David Porter in command.
Commodore Porter was
stripped of his command in
825, alter he had sailed o
Puerto Rico. then Spamish
lerritory., Lo investigate
reporis that goods stolen by
pirates had been hidden
there. He was suspended
from the Navy for six
months after having been
found guilty of conduct un-
hecoming an offwer and ex-
ceeding his authority. He then
resigned and accepred a com-
mission as General of Marine
in the Mexican Navy, and in
that capacity he used Key
West as a base to prey upon
Spamish commerce. [Porter
left Key Westabruptly in 1827
when a Spanish sguadron
threatened to blockade the
harbor. Subseguently he was
restored 1o good graces, spen-
ding his remamning vears ifi the
Linited States diplomatic ser-
vice. Since Porter’s day. the
importance and level of staf-
fing at the Kev West Naval

Hase has
national
PrIGritics.
Puring the very first year of
its existence in 1823, an out-
break of yellow lever caused
the hase to be declared unfit
for hahitation between July
and October. In [B26 the
navil base was moved to Pen-
sicola. leaving only a coaling
and supply station at Key
West for a number of years.

fluctuated with
reguirements  and

the South held by the Union
throughout the Cwvil War,
Some 299 captured blockade
runners were brought 1o Key
West, depriving the Con-
federacy of thousands of tons
of much-needed supplies.
Once again  the dreaded

vellow fever Torced the Navy
temporarily 10 move the base
to Tampa during the summer
ol 1864, when the death rate
{rom the disease had reached

Entrance to the I.'n-i-'lﬂ:l .."it;l.:rs N-av;.l Sﬁﬁun Key West 1929,
(Photo from the HASF Collection.)

I'here was little change in
this status until 1852, when
construction of a permanent
building was begun for use as
u warchouse and coaling sta-
tion. However, lack of funds
delayed completion ol the
building until the outbreak of
the Civil War, This structure,
designated as Building # 1. sull
stunds. Having changed
hunds  several times, it s
presently occupied by the
United States Coast Guard.

he Kev West Naval Base
was used extensively during
the Civil War by the Union
forces. In 1861, Key West was
designated as headquarters
of the East Gulf Blockading
Squadron, commanded by
Flag Officer W. W, McKean.
Key West was the sole port in

15 persons per day.

After the Ciwil War, the
maval bhase reverted o its
status as a coal depot and
supply station. The next 30
vears were to see hittle naval
activity there. Presdent ULS
Cirpnt in 1875 did assemble a
Meet at Kev West for possible
intervention 1o ad Cuban
revolutionsts, However, un-
der pressure from European
povernments this move was
abandoned. and the
assembled naval forces were
dispersed.

In the 1880s 1.1, Robert E.
Pearv. later to discover the
North Pole. was dispatched to
Key West to build a wharf in
the harbor.

When all-out war broke oul
between Spain and the Cuban
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insurgents in. the mid-1890s,
the naval station at Key West
suddenly became the most
important in the nation as
many politicians and much
ol the press sel up an incessan|
clamor for United States in-
tervention in the conflict. It
wias from Key West that the
L.S.5. Mame began the trip
to  its  rendervous with
destruction in Havana Har-
hor, an event which ended
the effective opposition of
those who stll hesitated to
draw the sword against
Spain. Many who died on the
Maine are buned in Key
West. Hundreds of the sur-
vivors of the ill-fated ship
were cared for by the Sisters
of St. Marys in Key West,
who turned their convent
into a hospital during the
ensuing war,

The lirst shot lired after the
United States entered the war
occurred within sight of Key
West when the USS.
MNashville hired across the bow
of the Spanish steamer Buena
Ventura, which ship, after
capture. was brought into Key
West,

In 1899, according toa Key
West source, the entire Atlan-
tic Fleet of the U5, Navy was
based there.

Following the Spanmh-
American war the naval sta-
tion entered a yuiet period
which was o last for more
than a decade. However.
some additional building did
take place during this time, in-
cluding a naval radio station
This became most useful by
1914 when the lacility hecame
an important and necessary
commumications ink between
the United States mamland
and the Panama Canal. which
passed the lirst ocean-gong

vessel in August of that year,
Consuderable expansion ol

the naval base began with the
outhreak in Europe of World
War | in 1914, The station
became the headquarters ol
the Seventh Naval District.
whose primary mission was lo
prevent German submarines
from operating in the Gulf of

Mexico. A dispensary and a
machine shop were con-
structed and piers were built
during and immediately
following the war. The base
wus used extensively by both
surface craft and submarines
during the war.

As had been the case
following other wars and
emergencies. activities at the
Key West Naval Station
diminished after World War |

The United States Naval Station and Custom House, Key West,

ghoui 19405,

the complement and facilities
expanded tremendously dur-
ing the war. A greatdeal more
property was acquired by the
Navy, and more than 330,
000,000 was spent on new
construction, More than 14.-
000 ships were logged nto
Key West during the war. Up
to 580 MNaval personnel
were on shore leave there at
one time during World War
II. Once again the naval sta-

{ Phato from the HASE Caollection. )

&g 2

The three towers of the radio

bt

sial

ion estahlished in Kev West by

the Navy in 1908 - an important communication link.
f Photer from the HASF Callecrion. )

until 1932 when its sole occu-
pant was the Navy radio sta-
tion with a complement of
only 17 men. Notable events
during this period included
a visit by President Franklin
[>. Roosevelt and the Chief
of Naval Operations, Admiral
Willlam Leahy.

Feverish activity at the
naval sttion was resumed
when World War 1l erupied in
Europe in September of 1939,
From only a handful of men
aboard. and about 40
dilapidated buildings in 1939,

tion played a key role in the
war against German sub-
marines, It was the home base
ol a number of naval craft, in-
cluding submarines and asub-
mirine tender.

Although activity at the
Naval Station subsided
somewhat when World War
11 ended. itdid not decrease to
the extent that it had follow-
ing World War 1. There was
much new construction, in-
cluding a number of housing
units for Naval personnel and
buildings to house the Fleet

Sonar School. The postwar
era also saw the replacement
of 4 number of naval per-
sonnel by civilians,

During the late 19405 and
early 1950s, President Harry
5. Truman made his viication
home in a house located on
the naval base. General of the
Armies Dwight D,
Eisenhower recuperated from
a heart attack in another
house on the base during the
period when he was Chiel of
Sl

In 1960 naval station per-
sonnel. both military and
civilian, played a major role in
relief operations alter hurri-
cane Donna devastated the
middle Keys.

President John F. Kennedy
and Prime Mineter Harold
Muacmillan of Great Briman
conferred at the Key Waest
Maval Station in 1961,

I'here was a briel but in-
tense Murry of aclivity at the
base in October and
MNovember of 1962 during the
Cuban missile crisis. The arca
swiarmed with ships and all
munner  of  military units.
President Kennedy, his ad-
visors, and the Joint Chiels of
Stall met at the naval station
it aiswess the criss [rom that
vantage point only 90 miles
from Cuba.

[he next decade was 1o see
the phasing out of all naval
operations @t the  station.
Some ol the facilities are used
as an annex o accommodate
the overflow from the Naval
Alr Station based on
ncighboring Boca Chica. The
.S, Coast Guard also oc-
cupies a portion of the base.

Only the future will deter-
mine whether events will
agiin thrust the Key West
Maval Stanon inio the pmi-
tion of prominence 1t has held
in the past, Meanwhile the
deep channels and protected
anchorages remain there 1o be
used once again should the
vicissitudes of the United
States” foreign relations re-
guire reactivation of the Key
West Naval Station.
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THE SHIP THAT STOPPED THE BOOM

By Samuel J. Boldrick

The Prins Valdemar was
launcehd in 18¥6 at Helsin-
gor, Denmark. as a naval
training vessel. By 1925
after a clouded war career, the
Prins Valdemar was part of
the Nonlla racing 1o Keep
Miami's booming construc-
tion industry supplied.

Frantic real estate actvity
in the early 20s created a glut
of freight cars waiting to be
unloaded. Finally the Flonda
East Coast. Miami's only
railroad at the time. could
accept no more cars in s
storage yard and declared an
embargo. Builders, faced with
this embargo, looked to the
sea. Anvthing that could float
was pressed into service carry-
ing building material to
Miami.

The Prins Valdemar, a
barkentine, arrived with a
million and a hall feet of
lumber. After unloading, it
was planned w tow her to a
berth near Miami Beach's
Fleetwood Hotel where she
would be fitted out as a hotel
and casino. At the dock-
masters request, a portion
of her ballast was discharged
at Municipal Pier. Additional
portholes were cut in her
hull to allow betler interior
ventilation of lower decks.
On January 10, 1926, at
11:3) am., en route to
Miami Beach. the Prins ran
aground. The tugs abandoned
her, planning to pull the
vessel off at the mext high
tide. Requests for assistance
to passing tugs and to a Coast
Guard cutter went unheeded,
A brisk northeastwind
caught the vessels tall masts;
top-heavy from lightened
ballast, she lsted, allowing
the sea to pour into her open
portholes. The weight and
force of this water rolled the

Prins on her side, masts and
hull completely blocking the
port channel. A score of ships
were bottled up in port and
although word was sent oul
halting other ships en route
o Miami by the time the
the channel was reopened

was decided to dredge under
the keel so that schooners
could get close and by means
ol lines raise the ship so that
the portholes could be plug-
ged, When the water was
pumped out the ship would
right isell. The Ciry of

The Priny Veldemor overturmed after running aground in the
port channel on January 10, 1926.

{ Plioter  from  the

Library.)

Feomrer  Collectiomn,

VWirnni= el Prahli

After a bust career as a naval training vessel, a clovded career and
service as a carpgo ship, the Prins Valdemar became a landlocked
huilding and served as an aquarium restaurant in the late 19400s,

{Phete  from the  Romer

Fibrary.)

more than 45 million feel
of desperately needed lum-
her was riding at anchor out-
side the harbor.

Various methods ol
refloating the ship were con-
sidered. Dynamite was avoid-
ed since the resulting twisted
wreck would be just as costly
and difficult to remove.
Acetylene torches proved to
be too expensive. Finally it

Ceslleciion,

Wierrari- Phaglee Pruhlic

Portland attempted to raise
the ship and failed. The days
dragged into weeks and
Miami's boom showed signs
ol weakening.

During the time that the
harbor was closed, passengers
and cargo were transferred by
tender from ships lying off
Miami Beach to the piers,
Some vessels used old South
Channel, but most were deep-

draft ships heavily laden with
cargo and this channel was
too shallow.,

At the Masonic Temple,
Miamians were treated o
three benefit performances of
vaudeville and a history of the
Prins in pageant [orm,
originally intended for open-
ing night of the hotel-ship.
proceeds going to assist the
cast., sallors and others who
manned the wvessel, In the
meantime a row developed
between the crew and ship
owners over payvroll ac-
counis,

The Prins Valdemar's
masts were removed and a
shallow channel dredged
around the hull. On February
4th at 7 a.m. the Baltimore &
Carolina freighter Georgean-
na Weems was the first ship to
leave Miami harbor, First to
enter was the Lowisiana. a
Gull & Southern freighter.
Because of the shallowness of
this temporary channel.
groundings continued. The
schooner Hesper went
aground near Pier 3 on
February [0 and closed the
harbor for a day until tugs
removed her at high nhde.
February 12 found the
schooner  Newsonle, seams
open. with a heavy cargo of

lumber. sunk mnear Fisher
Island. The Clyde Lines
Pawnee was aground

alongside and the schooner
Creorge W. Truit, Jr. ground-
ed nearby, closing the harbor
for another day, On February
16 the tanker Fueloil ground-
ed near the Prins, closing the
harbor for part of a day. (The
port of Palm Beach was clos-
ed fora lew days by a ground-
ed ship at this same time.)
Finally on February 21,
1926, after 41 days, hydraulic
jacks, hoisting dredges. and
lines which ran to shore raised
the hull while barge loads of
sand filled the hold as ballast.
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The Faldemar was towed to
the foot of Fifth Street and
rode at anchor as a true ship.
Iromically, duning the greal
hurricane of 1926 she was the
only ship in Miami harbor to
ride out the storm un-
damaged. In 1928 she was
converted into a f(loating
aquanum. A steel bulkhead
was placed around the vessel
in 1937; then she ceased to be
a ship. Floated six lect above
high-water line and with the
colferdam filled in, the Prins
Valdemar became a landlock-
ed building, being used as an
officers’ club by the Navy dur-
ing World War 11. After the
War an aguarium was opened
on the lower deck and a
restaurant on the upper. By
1949 the Miami Herald was
referring to it as an “evesore”
and on October 14, 1952, the
Miami News reported on a
full page of pictures “Once
Graceful Sea Beauty Ends
Career in Scrap Pile”.

HISTORY IS NO

LONGER A MYSTERY

ANSWERS TO PUZZLE
ACROSS: 1)
LIGHTHOUSE 10y DEER
11y MAGIC 14) MIAMI
16) ADA 17y O8 19)
RIATA 21) EU 22) MTA
24) LISTERS 26) RD 28)
EE 29) TAMIAMI 33)
LAW 35) ON 36) PLANT
%) MA 39) ETE 41) AN-
CON 43) SITAR 45)
ULUA 47y COR-
MORANTS
DOWN: 2) ID 3) GEM 4)
HEIR 5) TRAIL 6)
OMITS 7) UA 8) SGA 9)
EIDER 12) CAUSEWAY
13) TOMATOES 15)
MAILMAN 18) ST 20
ATE 23) ARM 25)EEL 27T)
DIP 30) ANTIC 31)
ALARM 132) INCUR 34)
AM ATITOLA4ADYETO42)
MNUN 44) AR 46) AT
The crossword in the Febru-
ary issue was perhaps the
most  difficult
lished. Iid any of you com-
plete it7-Ed.

we've pub- |

REFLECTIONS ON LOCAL BLACK HISTORY:

Stevedores are important
community workers. They
load and unload cargoes that
travel by ship.

Historically. the crew of a
vessel loaded and unloaded its
cargo and stores, but as sail-
ing ships gave way o
steamships, which carried far
more cargo, the need arose for

more men W handle this in-
creased volume. Also,
because shippers paid high
rates for delivery, it became
necessary to expedite ships
through ports: besides it costs
over 51,000 a day to have a
ship tied up in port. Thus
evolved a land labor force to
handle cargo for oulgoing
shipments and to deliver new-
lv arnved cargo into the hands
of consignees.

As the need for labor on the
waterfront increased, oddly
enough, so did the scramble

Mrs. Fields, researcher in
local black history, s a Dade
County School teacher.

- -

STEVEDORES

By Dorothy J. Fields

for jobs. Shipowners liked
having a large casual labor
force which was hired when
ships were working. '

In 1918 there were several
stcamships transporiing
cargo to Miami, The
steamship “Van"™ carried
freight and passengers

between Miami and Jackson-

Stevedores prepare to load cargo on this ship docked in Miami.
Cargo was moved by hand truck to the wharl and stacked on
pallets to facilitate its transfer to the ship.

{ Phister frenn the HASF Collection. )

ville. Another, the steamer
“Brandon”, was limited to
freight service between Miami
and Fort Lauderdale. Still
another ship. the 5.5.
“Thames”, was hmited to
freight, to and from Jackson-
ville.?

Leaving Jacksonville every
Saturday at 1:00 p.m. the
“Thames™ arrived in Miami
the following Monday at 7:00
a.m. Awaiting the ship’s
arrival in Miami was a labor
force composed mostly of
black men. These men would
be required to unload he in-
coming cargoes and load the
outgoing cargoes in time for
the ship's scheduled departure

at 3:00 p.m. the next day 3

Loading and unloading
cargo required stevedores to
be agile and able bodied. In
the carly days cargoes had to
be carried to the wharfl and
stacked on pallets to facilitate
transfer to and from the ship:‘
Such work was strenuous and
often dangerous, depending
on the weather conditions or
type of cargo.

Today, the responsibilities
and duties of the stevedore
have changed. The term
stevedore relers 1o the person
who 15 responsible for the
storing of cargo in a vessel. He
may be responsible for the
work and salety ol possibly
250 men. He gets his instruc-
tions from the pier
superintendent.

Longshoremen  are now
responsible for moving cargo
by hand or machine under the
direction of the stevedore.®

Cargo ships deliver impor-
tant ilems 1o communities.

Stevedores and longshore-
men are important workers
n this community.,

I. *Stevedoring Oc-
cupations”, The Encyclopedia
aof Careers and Vocational
(ruidance, revised ed., p. 736,
2. Advertisement, The
Miami Herald, Tuesday, May
14, 1918, p. 7.

1. Advertisement, The
Miami Herald, May 21, 1918,
p. /.

4. Dictionary of Oc-
cupational Titles, volume 1,
third ed.. p. 432.

5. Encyclopedia of Careers
and Vocation Gudance, revis-
ed ed., volume 11, p. 757.
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BOOK REVIEW SECTION

Mic-
cosukee Indian Way, by Nan-
¢y Henderson and Jane

Circle of Life;: The

Dewey. 64 pages, $4.72.
Messner  Publishing Com-
pany, New York, 1974,

Reviewed by Jean Berman

The Miccosukee boy, a
member of the original con-
servationists, s taught early
to hunt and fish only for
animals needed for food. This
he knows because, poetically,
the Breathmaker (God) has
abundantly provided the
carth with animals, fruits,
vegetables, and other foods.
Just as easily does he adapt to
the modemn use of machinery,
evident in the way he handles,
maintains, and repairs the air-
boat. This fast, efficient
means of transportation
rapidly carries him across the
sawgrass in the Everglades to
the raised land or hammock
where he lives with his family.

Thus begins this up-to-date
account of neighbors living in
the Everglades, whose
traditions and history far
predate the history of the
white man. Happily, the
authors talked with and
listened to the Miccosukees,
who contributed accurate in-
formation of their people. The
viewpoint of the Indians is
sympathetically expressed,

Char reviewer ix [thrarian and
media specialist at  David
Fairchild Elementary School.

and the advantages to all of us
to keep their traditions alive
are apparent as the story is
told. Their heritage i1s a rnich
one and their culture realistic
for their needs and beliefs,
The attempt thev are making
to adjust to the white man's
world is one that should be en-
couraged. Their idea is ol
“continumg to work with
whites. but not try to be like
them. They will try to under-
stand the white world but
preserve  the Miccosukee
heritage.”™ In our turn, we
should respect this idea and
ad them in their attempl to
accomplish this goal.

The book is written in fast-
reading prose for the inter-
mediale-grade reader, I
clearly tells of a neighbor's
way of life. As the title
describes, The Circle of Life,
which includes. the four
points of the compass, il
followed not in the squared-
off manner, but circularly, as
‘the whole universe spins this
way'.

The movement includes an
explanation of the history,
customs and religion, com-
prising the center around
which the Indians build their
lives. A description of their
housing and their clothing
and their serviceability lor
their needs is included in this
clearly written account. The
importance of the sewing
machine in their lives and how
it influenced their economy is
also indicated.

From the white culture that
is crowding in upon the Mic-
cosukees, the action of the
white man and the re-
quircments of his government
are presented as they appear
to the Indians. The
matriarchal family life also
shows the value and impor-
tance of the traditions that
keep the tribe functional. The
grandmother is the
transmitter of much lore
through her storytelling.

Education for the young
has its special problems when
there are two cultures that
must be considered. The Mic-
cosukees are active in attemp-
ting to do their best for their
children; there are tribal plans
for secondary-school classes
on the reservation.

The black-and-white
photographs, which have ex-
cellent captions, add much to
the text. There is no index,
which detracts somewhat
from the book’s value.
Though the text is compact, it
does run the various topics
together, making it in-

convemient to find specific in- .

formation.

Despite the many problems
that confront the Miccosukee,
the tone of the book is
hopeful; it may well arouse
both interest and concern in
the children who read the
hook.

Guide to the Everglades by
Mike Smith and Virginia
Matusek. Tampa. Trend
House, cl1975.

This tour book could be
subtitled *A field guide to
man in the Everglades and Big
Cypress Swamp.” It is replete
with advice on towns, roads,
trails, and wilderness
preserves o  visit, giving
thumbnail histories, informa-
tion on facilities, and
suggestions [or survival,
whenever appropriate, Not to
be left at home.

It is available in the
museumn hibrary and gift shop.

Beckv Smith

WANTED

The museum would be
grateful for the donation of
any of the following books:

Ober, Frederick Albion. The
Knockabout Club in the
Everglades. Boston, Estes
and Launat, 1887,

Robertson, Fred L. Soldiers
of Florida in the Seminole
Indian Civil and Spanish-
American Wars. Flonda
Board of State Institutions,
1903,

MILITARY
ROAD MAP
AVAILABLE

1856 Military Road Map of
South Florida, as Ordered by
the Hon. Jefferson Davis,
Miami, Bob Lamme, 1975.

The Davis map is one of the
most detailed and accurate
carly maps of the lower
peninsula. This reprint is in
color, with a summary on the
back of the accompanying
Ives report. a geographic
description of the area. For
perspective, the map includes
an overlay of major present
day roads and cities.

This map s available for
perusal in the museum library
and purchase in the gift shop.

GULF COAST
CONFERENCE

The sixth Gulf Coast
History and Humanities Con-
ference will be held in Pen-
sacola, Florida, October 2-3,
1975. The topic 15 “The
Cultural Legacy of the Guif
Coast, 1870-1940." The con-
ference is co-sponsored by the
Historic Pensacola Preserva-
tion Board, The Escambia
County School Board, Pen-
sacola Junior College, the Un-
iversity of West Florida and
the MNational Trust for
Historic Preservation.
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PICTURING OUR PAST

By S. J. Boldrick

The Prins Valdemar arriving at Miami Harbor in 1926.

FPiwir froom the
Litrarv. )

The 5. 5. Chavlram led a parade of ships to mark the apening of

Romer Collection,

Muanni- Dade

Miami's deepwater harbor on December 13, 1927.

f Plhirey  from the
Library, )

Romwer  Collection,

LA S

Miami- Dade

THE & ST e
iy g

A sunny February 13, 1932, found the Arandora Siar at
Municipal Docks and the Goodyear Blimp drifting by,

{Pheto  from  the
Library.

Romer Collection,

Miami-Dadle  Public

HISTORY'S A MYSTERY

By Larry Winebrenner

Prhlic

Pubfic

I 2 B & [s T b T R .
10 11 I
13 14 15 16
17 |I8 19 20 21
22 23 24 25
26 |27
29 130 3l
i5 36
39 40 41
43 44
ACROSS DOYW N
1. Key Biscayne's oldest 2, Card
building 3. Opal or diamond
0. Small animal: key 4. Hereditary successor
1. city 5. Tamiami
14, Eleven across 6. Leaves out
16. Famous Miami 7. Ursula’s monogram
schoolteacher 8. Student Government
17. Bone Association
19, Lasso 9. Sea duck
21. Daphthong 12. Rickenbacker
22, Dade bus service 13. South Dade crop

24. South Dade farm
implements

26. Red {abbr.)

28. Kind of engineer (abbr.)

29, Famous Florida trail
33, Written rule
35, Columbus gquote: “Sail

36. What South Dade farmers

do to thirteen down
38. Pa’s partner
19. Summer (Fr.)
41. Console

43. Hindu stringed instrument

45. Hawaiian game fish
47. Aquatic birds

Larry Winebrenner is a professor

ar Miami Dade Commuirnity
College - |North Campus.

15,
1.

23,

25.
21,
30.
il
a2,
14,
37.
. World War 1l area
42,
. Land measure
46,

Famous barefooter
Petersburg
Consumed

“Man with the Golden

Snakelike fish

Ocean or pool event
Caper

Kind of clock

Bring upon oneself
Initials of sixteen across
East Indian weight

Barry College votary

Initials of star of 1920

Miami'Beach-located Nilm,
End of the Pavement™

Armswers on page ¥



PORT OF MIAMI
Continued from page 3

At this time, however, the
Pory of  Mami  chianged
ownership. Since its begin-
ming. the port had heen a Ciry
ol Miami property and opera-
tion.  Hut an 1957, the new
Metropolitin  Dade County
form of government came
inta being. and  with 1t a
hroader realizatwon ol com-
mon services for the Greatér
Minmi community. For one
thing. it was finally recogniz-
ed that our seaport served all
of ade County and not just
the Citv. of Miami.  For
another, i1 was evident that
Metropolitan: Dade  County
wionld have a broader lunding
hise than the ity alone, and it
wils obvious' that this would
he an important factoran the
days ahead.

S0 in 1960 a joint agree-
ment was signed between the

INCORFORATED

MIAMI, FLORIDA 33129

City: of Miami and
Metropolitan  ade County
which provided that thecoun-
tv wiould take over not only
the existing operation of the
port but also the responsibihi-
v lor the construction of the
Mew Port ol Miamion Dod ge
Island. One of the provisions
of the agreement was that
onee the lacilities of the New
Port were adeguate to take
care ol all the cargo and
passenger  business ol the

HISTORICAL ASSOCIATION OF SOUTHERN FLORIDA
3280 SOUTH MIAMI AVENUE - BUILDING B

port, the old port propertcs
on Biscavne Boulevard would
revert to the City of Miami for
non-port usage. {This was
done several years ago, and
todav, of course, the city i
developing the old port site
into an extension of Baviront
[*ark under its master plan lor
the baviront.)

Durnng  this  same.  vear
(1964). construction  of the
New Portbegan, Thisentailed
the bulkheading and filling hy

i

Freight dock on the Miami River at old Avenue E - west of pre-
sent Miami Avenue. Vegetables from Cutler and Elliott Key were
unloaded here for transfer to the railroad. Note crating material
fur tomatoes on dock. c. 1898. Royal Palm Hotel in background.
{ Phoror franm the HASF Collection.
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dredging of the new site; the
construction of the Dodge
Island brdge: the construc-
tion of an extensive road and
dockside pavement system;
the installation of essential
utilities such a5 sewers. un-
derground  celectric  power
witler lhines and
telephone services, Once this
wis accomplished by about
the mud=1960s, construciion
wis commeneed on the cargo
buildings, the passcnger ter-
minal  facihties, the office
huildings and the like

TFoday. the New Port of
Miami is still expanding with
addimonnl construction going
on almost continuously. The
port needs of the community
are heing met in good lashion
and our clean, modern. func-
tional  seaport  is  world
renowned. Behind it all are
cighty vears of history, logical
development and growth, A
bright spot. indeed. within
Our community,

lifies,



